





Disclaimer

This document contains proprietary and confidential information.

All data submitted to the recipient is provided in reliance upon its consent not to use or disclose any information contained herein except in the context of its business dealings with PelicanCorp and MISS DIG 811.

The recipient of this document agrees to inform its present and future employees, employers, and partners who view or have access to the document's content of its confidential nature.

The recipient agrees to instruct each employee that they must not disclose any information concerning this document to others except to the extent that such matters are generally known to, and are available for use by, the public.

The recipient also agrees to not duplicate or distribute or permit others to duplicate or distribute any material contained herein without PelicanCorp's express written consent.

PelicanCorp retains all title, ownership and intellectual property rights to the material and trademarks contained herein, including all supporting documentation, files, marketing material, and multimedia.

Nothing in this proposal constitutes a license for recipient to utilize PelicanCorp's/ MISS DIG 811's technology or intellectual property rights.

BY ACCEPTANCE OF THIS DOCUMENT, THE RECIPIENT AGREES TO BE BOUND BY THE AFOREMENTIONED STATEMENT.



Contents

How MISS DIG 811 Works	4
Dig and Design Notice Overview	4
Updating Your Contact Information	7
Creating Default Settings for Ticket Entry	8
Creating a New Ticket-Entering Ticket Details	10
Ticket Types and Scope of Work	10
Design Ticket	11
Dig Tickets	11
Scope of Work Equivalents	12
Normal Ticket Polygon Equivalents	13
Urban - 20,000 Sq. Ft	13
Rural - 50,000 Sq. Ft	13
Written Scope of Work Guidelines	13
Signage Scope of Work	13
Multiple Sign Locations	14
Type of Work and Activity	15
Excavation Method and Depth	15
Ticket Dates	16
Working on Behalf of & Name of Utility/Authority	16
Onsite Contact Company, Name, and Phone	17
Require a Private Locate?	17
Is the area pre-marked?	17
Outdoor Pet on Property?	17
Work is in a Body of Water?	17
Creating a new ticket-Mapping the Work Location	17
Finding the work location-Performing a Search	17
Mapping the Work Location	18
Mapping Tools	19
Confirm Dig Site	25
Additional Information	25
Ticket History	26



This manual is intended to provide instruction to external users of the OneCallAccess program for placing and managing design and dig notices in the state of Michigan.

The information contained in this manual includes a description of system functions, capabilities, and step-by-step procedures for use of the OneCallAccess program.



How MISS DIG 811 Works

Public Act 174 of 2013 established guidelines for the protection of underground facilities prior to excavating or blasting. This law is also known as the MISS DIG Underground Facility Damage Prevention Safety Act. Public Act 174 may be viewed in its entirety on the About page of the MISS DIG 811 website. Dig and Design Notice Overview.

Dig and Design Notice Overview

A dig notice may be placed between 3 working days and 14 calendar days prior to excavation or blasting by using the OneCallAccess online program or by contacting the MISS DIG 811 Notification Center at 811 or 800-482-7171. OneCallAccess is available at MISSDIG811.ORG. A dig notice contains dig site information that is sent to member facility owners/operators in the area of excavation or blasting. Facility owners/operators are required to respond to a dig notice by supplying facility information so informed decisions can be made regarding excavation.

When facility information is needed for the planning of a project, a design notice may be completed. A dig notice is required prior to digging, even when a design notice was placed. The same platform is used for placing design and dig notices.

Prior to submitting a dig or design notice, a user account is created in OneCallAccess (OCA). Each person using the OneCallAccess program should create their own account. OCA accounts may be accessed by going to the MISS DIG 811 website at MISSDIG811.ORG. Users may also review and manage their profile and requests in OneCallAccess.

Important information regarding the polygon and other information collected on a ticket.

The polygon(s) transmitted on a MISS DIG 811 tickets represent Public Act 174 of 2013 Section 5. (2) (b) "A description of the proposed area of blasting or excavation, including the street address and a property description".

Excavators providing a dig notice to MISS DIG 811 communicate their area of excavation by either creating a polygon of the dig site location or communicating the area to a MISS DIG 811 representative who in turn completes a polygon. The polygon is transmitted on the MISS DIG 811 ticket to the facility owners. The polygon reflects the area the excavator has designated to MISS DIG 811 as the excavation/blasting area to be located and marked. Positive Responses provided are for the entire area covered under the polygon associated with the ticket.

Address information is also collected and provided in the dig ticket. Facility Owners and/or Operators are responsible for determining the precise area to mark their facilities in response to the dig ticket, whether by locating either the entire property of the address of the dig ticket, or only the polygon area determined by the excavator.

Additional information provided on a ticket such as remarks, Latitude and Longitude are there to assist locators in understanding the polygon, they do not replace or alter the area represented by the address and polygon.



After Submitting a Ticket

Upon submitting a dig or design notice to MISS DIG 811, a ticket with a unique ticket number is generated. Facility owners shall respond to a dig or design ticket by the work legal start date and time on the ticket. Tickets may be viewed and managed by logging into OneCallAccess.

The following requirements must be met prior to digging.

The work legal start date and time has arrived. Facility owners/operators are required to respond to a request by the work legal start date and time. State law prohibits digging prior to the work legal start date, even if all facility owners/operators have responded.

Facility Owners/Operators have responded that it is safe to dig. Facility owners/operators should respond to a ticket by the work legal start date/time.

If a response is unclear, reach out to the facility owner/operator prior to digging. To view contact information for facility owners, download the job pack by clicking Download on the upper right side of the Positive Response page.

If a facility owner is non-responsive or has not completed marking by the response due date & time, retransmit the ticket for Unmarked Facility.

Field conditions indicate it is safe to dig. If conditions appear unsafe or if the response posted by a facility owner/operator does not match the field conditions, do not dig until the issue is resolved. A ticket should be retransmitted when any of the following conditions exist, as paraphrased from PA 174 section 5. (9):

Visible evidence of a facility with no visible marks.

Lack of positive response.

A response from a facility owner/operator indicating the presence of a facility with no visible marks.

The following Uniform Color Code system is adopted nationwide by the American Public Works Association (APWA) for the marking of underground facilities. Facility owners/operators will mark the approximate location using stakes, flags, paint, or other suitable material.

Markings may be removed upon completion of your job after you have verified there are no other jobs in the area that are using the same markings.





Creating a User Account

A new user account is created prior to submitting the first ticket. To create a new user account, go to MISSDIG811.ORG and click *Submit Locate Request*.

Setting Up User Profile

The log in page will appear. Click Sign up Here.



Enter Customer Details to include company contact information.

Company names are listed in alphabetical order. Start to type your company name until it appears. If your company is not in the list, choose -Not Listed-. If you choose Not Listed, MISS DIG 811 will reach out to you to get your company name added to the list.

OneCall Access	OneCallAccess	OneCallAccess	OneCallAccess
MISS DIG 811: Safe Digging Starts Here	MISS DIG 811: Safe Digging Starts Here	MISS DIG 811: Safe Digging Starts Here	MISS DIG 811: Safe Digging Starts Here
← Register User	🔶 Register User	🔶 Register User	🔶 Register User
Canada details Canada and Canada	Electronic contact details Juny man and 245551212 Table Jane Andrew 245551212 Table Jane	Where can the use the contacted Miscellaneous details Miscellaneous details Farchite Movie Sar Was Option for newspiritein from MisS Dic 8117 Sar Was Lagree to be bound by fema and Conditions Nace	Cutomer detail Minecelan elocat de vere Cutomer aux the varie Cutomer aux the varie the cardinature Cutomer aux the varie the cardinature Cutomer aux the varies of the varies Cutomer aux the varies of the varies of the varies Cutomer aux the varies of the va

Once an account is created, an email will be sent with a link to *validate your email address*. Validating the email will allow ticket confirmations to be emailed to the new user and tickets to be created with the account. The new user may log into their account once the email has been validated.

0	noreply@peldev.net Www.ingostort.net.au/	24
	WelcomeRit.pdf	
	Validate your email address.	
	Dear Stephanie Boa	
	Thank you for a patering with MESS E09 811.	
	With your sename below, you now have access to our orders ticket service.	
	Before you can request a locate, you need to confirm you have received this email somethy. You can do the toy cludong on the following link and confirming your account:	
	Valiante vour amail address.	
	Prior to addressing your first request, please review the Abstracture or Bickwater Ap pages on the Mode DEG 413 website or <u>Hode DEGE 10001110000</u> . Hore you will find valuable information regarding where how to please a request, how its how or its set to to be, and set excerning process.	
	Prior to advertise year from request, please neares the non-ensurem or document Arguings in the MSS 500 kit webmar are (SESSCOM). TABLE ways was the for variable information regarding when have to please an exceed, how to know it is sole to dig, and sole exclusions markings. To request a locale please was <u>HSSSOUSELLOBE</u> , click Solemit Locate Request , and takes printing.	
	Prior to advecting your from request, please neares the non-ensurement of backetin Arguinges on the MSB 500 kit websits are <u>ESERCOMMENT</u> . THEN you you with the valuable information regarding when them to place a request, how to toom it is used to dig, and self-exclusion movies and movement. The request a local please wort <u>MSSE00881.0856</u> , citic Submit Locate Request , and follow the primet. User 30: 1100487	
	Prior to addressing our Androney places reveals the Addressing of Addressing Addressing and Most 50 (51 (51 - 104 valued), from the Line (1-104 valued) and from the addressing addressing when have to place a research, then the from 4 is soft to dbg, and addressing and addressing addressing addressing addressing addressing addressing addressing addressing for respect a double places over INSSEQUENCE, club, club, Submit Locate Request, and follow the primet. User Site: 1010/4817 Upersame: Sole	



Logging In for The First Time

Upon logging in, the HOME page will display, also known as the Dashboard. From the Dashboard, tickets stats and history can be viewed, contact information can be updated, and certain ticket fields may be pre-populated to save the user time from entering the same information on every ticket. MISS DIG 811 may send messages or service announcements to users. The system will indicate when there is a new message. Positive Response, the program to check ticket status, may be accessed from the Home Page as well.

MISSDIG	🗓 MISS DIG 8	111: SAFE DIGGING STARTS HER	E		\$ 0 0
😤 Home	•	Home USER BOESOLUTION@GMAIL.COM, BOE SO	LUTIONS		New Ticket
Dashboard		Ticket Stats			
New Ticket		Month To Date	Active Tickets	Ticket Trend	
Message o	f the Day NOW	9	4	10	
Service Announcer	ments	Year To Date	Total Tickets	6 4 6 9	
tes History		15	15	9 - 48 - 48 - 48 - 48 - 48 - 48 - 48 - 48	O ^{de}
M Positive R	esponse	Recent History			
		20214300052 w maumee st A Original Normal - 21 day	drian Adrian	Submit Date Ticket Start Date 10/19/221 - 100608 am 10/22/201	User Reference
		20214300051 519 Sable St Alp Original Design	pena Alpena	Submit Data Ticket Start Data 10/19/2221 - 1001-40 am 11/02/2021	User Reference

Updating Your Contact Information

Contact information may be updated by clicking on the *User Profile* icon located on the upper right side of the home page. Make changes to the necessary fields and click *Save* to keep the changes.

¢ 😣 🕩	Edit Custome For: christobin	er Details	X
User profile New Ticket	Customer details @		
	First Name* Chris	Last Name* Tobin	
	Company Tobin Excavating		
	Job position Owner		
	Contact o	letails @	
	Primary phone number* 2485551212		

Username

Usernames may not be changed. If you require a new username, a new account must be created.

Multi-factor Authentication



Use

OCA External User Guide

The system is currently not set up for multi-factor authentication. The default setting is INACTIVE. Do not change this setting at this time or the system will prevent you from logging in.

Creating Default Settings for Ticket Entry

If the same type of work is performed regularly, default answers may be pre-set to certain ticket entry questions. These answers may be edited when placing a ticket. Click on the *Settings* icon located on the upper right side of the ticket entry screen, enter data into the appropriate fields and click *Save*.

ttype mal - 21 day			××
of work		Activity	
a/Fiber	××	Main Replacement	××
ation method		Excavation depth	
thine Exc	××	12in to 24in	××
reference			
		50	characters left
ing on behalf of		Name of utility/authority	
	mal - 21 day mal - 21 day of work V/Fiber ation method hine Exc reference ing on behalf of elect one se	nyne mai - 21 day of work V/Fiber X V ation method hinne Exc X V reference	af work: v/Fiber × v Activity ation method hine Exc × v Excavation depth tion to 24in reference 50 ing on behalt of Name of utility/authority

Recovering a Username or Password

OneCall Accursts MISS DIG 811: SAFE DIGGING STARTS HERE	OneCall Access MISS DIG 811: SAFE DIGGING STARTS HERE	OneCallAccess MISS DIG 811: SAFE DIGGING STARTS HERE
Log in		
Forgot your password or username?	Forgot your password? We'll send a password reset link to the email address associated with your username.	Forgot your username? We'll send your username to the email address below.
I Accept the Terms and Conditions.	Username	Email
Compot your battendid or userbline? Don't have an account? Syn up here.	Backto Loo in	Send email Back to Leg in

To retrieve a username or to retrieve (reset) your password, go to the MISS DIG 811 website at MISSDIG811.ORG and click *Submit Locate Request*. At the bottom of the log in box, click on *password* or *username*. To retrieve a password, a username is required. To retrieve a username, an email address is required.



Resetting Password- An email is sent requiring the user to click a link, allowing the password to be updated. You may also change a password from User Profile on the home page of OCA.



Message of the Day and Service Announcements

MISS DIG 811 will occasionally send messages regarding the system or MISS DIG 811 related

information. Look for "New" messages daily.

sboe@missdig811.org

sboe

Thank you, MISS DIG 811 Support





Creating a New Ticket-Entering Ticket Details

To create a new dig or design ticket, click New Ticket on the Home page.

MISS DIG 811 MISS DIG 8	11: SAFE DIGGING STARTS HERE			\$ 0 0
😤 Home 🔹	Home USER BOESOLUTION@GMAIL.COM, 123.NET, INC.			New Ticket
Dashboard	Ticket Stats			
New Ticket	Month To Date	Active Tickets	Ticket Trend	
Message of the Day	2	3		
Service Announcements	Year To Date	Total Tickets	6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
and History	24	24	الي ڪي ايٽي آئي ٿي جي اين جي اين جي اي	0 th
Positive Response	Recent History			

Ticket Types and Scope of Work

The first ticket field is the ticket type. There are two main categories of tickets: Dig and Design.

A dig ticket may be placed between three working days and fourteen calendars prior to digging or disturbing the ground. There are multiple types of dig tickets: Normal 21-day, Normal 180-day, Emergency, Short Notice, Concerned Caller, and Damage. An explanation of each ticket may be viewed below.

Design tickets are for the planning phase of a project: Digging may not occur because of a design ticket. Facility owner/operators must respond within 10 working days. The response to a design ticket is not to mark any facilities but to provide general information regarding the

Vev	v ticket	
1	Ticket details Information about the worksite and type of work involved	
	Ticket details 🛛	
	Ticket type [*] Select one	~
	Normal - 21 day	
	Normal - 180 day	
	Project - 180 day	
	Design	
	Emergency	
	Short Notice	

location of underground facilities. However, if a facility owner or operator does not have drawings or records that show the location of a facility, the facility owner/operator shall mark that facility under the procedures described in Section 7 of PA 174.

Ticket types are based on multiple factors including the urgency, and duration of the project being performed. New, untrained users have two ticket choices available to them: Normal 21-day (dig ticket) and Design.

Normal 21-day tickets are for jobs that are up to 1,320 linear feet in any direction, with a maximum of 20,000 sq. ft in urban areas. The limit in rural areas is up to 2,640 linear feet in any direction, with a maximum area of 50,000 sq. ft.

Design tickets are for the planning phase of a project. These jobs are not marked by locators. Instead, records or drawings of facilities are emailed to you.



For excavators who would like access to other ticket types and retransmit tickets, go to the <u>MISS DIG</u> <u>811 Website</u>, click Excavator Pros and choose Excavator Training. There are three steps required for an External Plus account, which provides you access Normal 21-day, Normal 180-day, Project 180-day, emergency, short notice, and retransmitting tickets.

Create an OCA account

Complete OCA External Plus Module in MISS DIG 811's Online Education site.

Complete an OCA tutorial webinar. Sign up on <u>MISS Dig 811's Online Education site</u>.

Upon completion of training, an excavator will be given an external plus account and may place Normal 21-day, Normal 180-day, Project 180-day, Emergency, Short Notice, and retransmit tickets. Online training is required for all External Plus users.

Below is an explanation of each ticket type.

Design Ticket

Туре	Description	Urban Limits	Rural Limits
Design	For planning purposes only. Facility information is emailed to the requestor; site is not typically marked.	Up to 2 sq. miles	Up to 2 sq. miles

Dig Tickets

Туре	Description	Urban Limits	Rural Limits
Normal 21-Day	21 days or less to complete; most single address tickets will be classified as normal 21-day tickets. May be placed by all users. This is the most common ticket type. No written scope of work guidelines	Up to 1,320 linear feet in any direction, maximum of 20,000 sq. ft.	Up to 2,640 linear feet in any direction, maximum of 50,000 sq. ft.
Normal 180-Day	Jobs that take over 21 days of digging to complete. May be placed by MISS DIG 811 operators or external plus users.	Up to 1,320 linear feet in any direction, maximum of 20,000 sq. ft.	Up to 2,640 linear feet in any direction, maximum of 50,000 sq. ft.
Project 180-Day	Larger jobs that take over 21 days of digging to complete. Written scope of work shown below; may be placed by MISS DIG 811 operators or external plus users.	20,001 – 1,742,400 sq. ft., maximum of 1,320 feet in any direction. Written Guidelines	50,001 – 6,969,600 sq. ft., maximum of 2,640 linear feet in any direction Written Guidelines



Emergency	Requiring a response in less than three working days due to danger to life, health, property, or environment, or to restore governmental services, utility services, or transportation; may be placed by MISS DIG 811 operators or external plus users.	Up to 1,320 linear feet in any direction, maximum of 1,742,400 sq. ft. Written Instructions	Up to 2,640 linear feet in any direction, maximum of 6,969,600 sq. ft. Written Guidelines		
Short Notice	Requesting a response in less than three working days but not meeting emergency criteria. This type of ticket is discouraged; it is not legal to dig prior to the work legal start date on the ticket. May be placed by MISS DIG 811 operators or external plus users.	Up to 1,320 linear feet in any direction, maximum of 20,000 sq. ft. Written Guidelines	Up to 2,640 linear feet in any direction, maximum of 50,000 sq. ft. Written Guidelines		
Concerned	Placed by a concerned party when excavation	n is taking place, but no	ticket is found; facility		
Caller	owner/operators are not required to post a response.				
Damage	For informational purposes only, affected members must still be directly notified of the damage. Contact 911 if there is danger to life, health, or property.				

Scope of Work Equivalents

One mile is 5,280 ft.

1/2 mile is 2,640 ft.

¼ mile is 1,320 ft.



Normal Ticket Polygon Equivalents

Urban - 20,000 Sq. Ft.	Rural - 50,000 Sq. Ft.
1,320 ft. x 15.5 ft.	2,640 ft. x 19.93 ft.
1,000 ft. x 20 ft.	2,000 ft. x 25 ft.
500 ft. x 40 ft.	1,320 ft. x 37.87 ft.
100 ft. x 200 ft.	1,000 ft. x 50 ft.
500 ft. x 40 ft.	500 ft. x 100 ft.
100 ft. x 200 ft.	100 ft. x 500 ft.
90 ft. x 222 ft.	90 ft. x 555 ft.
80 ft. x 250 ft.	80 ft. x 625 ft.
70 ft. x 285 ft.	70 ft. x 714 ft.
60 ft. x 332 ft.	60 ft. x 833 ft.
50 ft. x 400 ft.	50 ft. x 1,000 ft.
40 ft. x 500 ft.	40 ft. x 1,250 ft.
30 ft. x 665 ft.	30 ft. x 1,666 ft.

Written Scope of Work Guidelines

<u>Urban Areas</u>

- One street per ticket
- Divided roads: traffic-bound in each direction on a separate ticket.
- Up to 200ft radius of intersections
- Up to 10 addresses per ticket within 1,320 linear ft.
- Up to 5 buildings within 1,320 linear ft.

Rural Areas

- One street per ticket
- Divided roads: traffic-bound in each direction on a separate ticket.
- Up to 200ft radius of intersections
- Up to 10 addresses per ticket within 2,640 linear ft.
- Up to 5 buildings within 2,640 linear ft.

Signage Scope of Work

Tickets should include the following:

Single Location

A polygon that accurately depicts the precise dig location. GPS coordinates of the sign location may be used to pinpoint its precise location on the map.



A description of the location. This may be a wooden stake, existing sign, paint, or other identifiable mark. This information may be entered in the "Is the area pre-marked?" field or written in the Remarks field. This is not necessary if the polygon accurately describes the dig location (not oversized).

If the polygon is precise and is an accurate depiction of the dig location, enter SEE POLYGON in the Remarks field.

The approximate distance the sign is from the nearest intersecting roads, address, AND which side of the road it is located on. This is not necessary if the polygon accurately describes the dig location (not oversized).

Up to a 20ft radius may be requested of the sign location using the polygon or a written description if the polygon is oversized.

Multiple Sign Locations

The map currently allows one polygon to be created. When multiple sign locations are requested on a single ticket, the polygon must cover all locations, resulting in an oversized polygon that requires the excavator to provide a written description of each sign location. A future enhancement to the OneCallAccess platform will allow the excavator to create multiple polygons.

A polygon that covers all sign locations.

A description of each location. This may be a wooden stake, existing sign, paint, or other identifiable mark. This information may be entered in the "Is the area pre-marked?" field or written in the Remarks field.

The number of locations (not approximate number) on each side of the road is required.

The approximate distance of each sign location from the nearest intersection roads, address, or from a previously noted location AND which side of the road it is located on.

Up to a 20ft radius may be requested around each location.

ACCEPTABLE WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS

LOCATE 10FT RADIUS OF 3 WOODEN STKS LOC 1) 500FT N OF MAIN ST ON E SD OF PARK AVE LOC 2) 700FT N OF MAIN ST ON W SD OF PARK AVE LOC 3) 500FT N OF LOC 2

LOCATE 10FT RADIUS OF 5 WOOD STKS LOC ON E SD OF RD FIRST STK IS LOC APX 550FT S OF MAIN ST. REMAINING 4 STKS CONTINUE SOUTH APX EVERY 550FT

NOT ACCEPTABLE

LOCATE 10FT RADIUS OF WOOD STK LOC BET 500FT & 600FT S OF MAIN ST ON E SD OF PARK AVE (MISSING PRECISE LOCATION OF WOOD STK)

LOCATE 10FT RADIUS OF STAKES, SIGNPOSTS AND PAVEMENT PAINTED WHITE ON BTH SDS OF PARK AVE BET MAIN ST & ELM ST (*MISSING PRECISE LOCATION OF EACH STK, SIGNPOST OR PAINT MARKING, THE NUMBER OF LOCATIONS, AND SIDE OF ROAD*)

LOCATE BTH SDS OF PARK AVE BET MAIN ST & ELM ST (MISSING PRECISE LOCATION(S))

Sign locations must be marked prior to submitting a locate request. Signs may be identified with white or brown paint, an existing sign or stake with ribbon, or other identifiable marking. Do not use utility or survey colors.

If a map of the work location is available, indicate that in the Remarks field.

**The Remarks field is limited to 400 characters. The remarks field is used for the original ticket and any subsequent retransmits. Do not exceed 300 characters on the original ticket. DO NOT REMOVE ANY INFORMATION IN FROM PREVIOUS VERSIONS OF THE TICKET. ADD NEW INFORMATION TO THE TOP OF THE REMARKS FIELD. **

Type of Work and Activity

The type of work drop-down menu contains a list of work categories including CATV, Construction, Driveway, Electric, Groundwork, Sewer, Telephone and more. The activity list is populated based off the type of work chosen. For example, if Sewer was chosen as the work type, the user would have a variety of activities related to sewer to choose from including Septic System, Service Install, Catch Basin.

If multiple work types and/or activities are being performed, additional ones may be written in the Remarks field prior to submitting the ticket.

	Activity*	
\sim	Main Repair	~
	~	Activity*

Excavation Method and Depth

Choose the excavation method that best describes the work. An explanation of excavation methods can be found on the Excavation Pros Reference Material page on the MISS DIG 811 website.

Choose the maximum depth of digging.

Excavation me	thod*		Excavation depth*	
Vacuum E	cavation	\sim	24in to 48in	~



Ticket Dates

There are four dates that are displayed on every ticket. Work to Begin Date and Work Completion Date are inputted by the user. The Work Legal Start Date and Work Expiration Date (Ticket Expiration) are calculated based on the ticket type and PA 174 requirements.

An excavator may choose a Work to Begin Date between 3 working days and 14 calendar days from the date the excavator places the ticket. Choose a begin date that accurately reflects the expected excavation date. It is not recommended to use the default setting of 3 working days if your work will not begin at that time.

Work to Begin Date- The date the user will begin digging or planning.

Work Completion Date- The date the user expects to complete digging or planning.

Work Legal Start Date-This is auto-generated based on the ticket type and the chosen Work to Begin Date. This is the date the ticket becomes active and digging may commence following PA 174 requirements.

Work Expiration Date (Ticket Expiration)-The date the ticket expires based on the ticket type, Work to Begin Date and/or the Work Legal Start Date and PA 174 requirements.

User Reference- The user may include internal reference information, such as a job number or customer name. This field is optional.

Working on Behalf of & Name of Utility/Authority

When the user is performing work for a MISS DIG 811 Member, such as a utility company or municipality, *Local Government* or *Utility* may be chosen from the drop-down menu. *Other* is chosen when work is not being performed for a MISS Dig 811 Member.

The Name of Utility/Authority provides the user with a list of municipalities or utility companies based on the answer to the Working on Behalf of. If *Other* was

selected, Contractor (subcontractor), Homeowner, or Other Business are the selections.

Working on behalf of* Utility	~
Name of utility/authority [*]	
Select one	~
PARISH COMMUNICATIONS	
PENINSULA FIBER NETWORK, LLC	
PIGEON TELEPHONE	
POINT BROADBAND FIBER HOLDING, LLC	
PRESQUE ISLE ELECTRIC & GAS CO-OP, INC.	
PRESQUE ISLE HARBOR WATER COMPANY	
SAND CREEK TELEPHONE	
SEMCO ENERGY	



Onsite Contact Company, Name, and Phone

Onsite Contact Company (excavator doing work) is pre-populated from the company field in the User's Profile. This field may be edited. Enter the company or person performing the work if the company preset into the field is incorrect.

Onsite Contact Name & Phone- When there is an additional contact person, other than the user, enter their contact details.

Require a Private Locate?

Public facility providers mark their lines through the MISS DIG 811 process. It is the responsibility of the excavator to ensure private lines are marked prior to digging. This may include lines to outbuildings, outdoor lighting on residential lots or private lines on school or hospital campuses, churches, or shopping centers.

Choosing Yes will send the ticket to a private locating company(s) in the area who are MISS DIG 811 members. The private locating company will reach out to the excavator with more information regarding their service. Private utility locating is a fee-based service. Clicking Yes is not a contract for service.

Is the area pre-marked?

If the excavator has marked the dig site prior to submitting a dig notice, that may be indicated by choosing from the drop-down menu.

Outdoor Pet on Property?

Outdoor pets may interfere with the locator's ability to access or mark a site. If there is an outdoor pet on the property, click Yes. The locator can contact the property owner prior to entering the property to ensure their safety.

Work is in a Body of Water?

Clicking Yes to working in a body of water will alert the facility owners that additional contact or coordination may be required to mark the site.

Creating a new ticket-Mapping the Work Location

A polygon is drawn to depict the work location. The polygon size is limited by the ticket type chosen. There are three ways to search for the work location on the map.

Finding the work location-Performing a Search

Street- To find the location using an address or street. Enter the address including the address number, street, city/township/village. Choices may appear under the Street field. Click on the appropriate choice or click Search.



***If you are doing work at the address saved in the User Profile Setting in your account, you can click on the button "Use Registered Address" and the saved address will be populated into the street field. Once the address is populated in the Street field, a blue target will display the searched for results on the map.

Dig site location @	۲	Dig site l	ocation ø	۲
Search type Street	~	Search type Street		~
Use registered	address		Use registered add	dress
Street*		3212 Sjoquist Dr Gla	dstone Gladstone 49837	

Intersection- Search for the work location using a nearby intersection. Enter the intersecting roads in the First Street and Second Street fields. Enter the city/township/village in the Town/City field and click SEARCH.

Coordinate Search- GPS coordinates. Enter the coordinates as shown (ex: 32.771909, - 117.224812) and click Search.

Search type		
Coordinate Search	^	
Street		
Intersection		
Coordinate Search		

The map will populate upon performing a search. If the work location is not viewable on the map, the map may be moved or zoomed for a better view.

To move the map, click and hold the left clicker, dragging the map to the desired location. Release the left clicker to discontinue moving the map.

Zooming may be performed by the mouse wheel or clicking the +/- icon on the upper left side of the map.

Mapping the Work Location

The work location is mapped and sent to facility owners/locators as part of all dig and design requests. Mapping the work location is done by drawing a polygon(s) over the dig site.

The polygon(s) must cover the entire dig site and be as precise and accurate as possible. This information is used by facility owners/locators to locate and mark their facilities at the indicated dig site. Inaccurate polygons may prevent the dig site from being marked.

Page 19 of 47



OCA External User Guide

Member facility owners are notified based on the location of the polygon(s). If the polygon does not cover the entire dig site, the system may fail to notify the correct facility owners of your job.

Mapping Tools

Map Layers- Google Hybrid is the default map layer. To view other layers that will assist with finding the work location, click on the layer icon located in the upper right side of the map.

The parcel layer will display parcel information and aid in locating addresses.

Ruler- To measure, click on the protractor symbol. Click on the map to begin measuring. Drag the mouse to the desired location. Click to change

directions, if needed. The distance will appear in footage as the mouse is moved along the map. Double click to discontinue measuring.

Push Pin- Push pins may be set on the map as placeholders. Pins are for the excavator's use only and are not transmitted with the ticket. Facility owners/locators do not see the pins placed on the map. The user may perform multiple searches without losing previous search data by setting pins to mark reference points.

9 To pin locations on the map, click on the Push Pin icon appear at the end of the mouse cursor. Click on the map at the desired location(s) to place the pin(s).

When finished pinning the location(s), click Cancel to deactivate the push pin tool or click on another tool to begin using the next tool. To delete a push pin on the map, click on the Push Pin icon, click Delete and select the desired push pin to be removed. Delete Cancel

Polygon- The polygon tool is the standard drawing tool. Click the polygon icon.

Click on the map to begin drawing. Click to change directions. To complete drawing, click on the beginning point.

Circle- The circle tool may be used to draw a circle around an object. Click the circle icon.

Click and hold the left clicker on the mouse. Drag the mouse to the desired location and release the left clicker.

White points will **Edit-** To edit the polygon, click the edit icon. appear around the polygon. Click on a point to adjust the size and shape. When resizing is complete, click Finish to save the changes. Click Cancel to exit the edit function without saving.

Delete- To delete the polygon and measurements, click the trash icon, then click Clear All.







to activate. A colored push pin will



Covering the Dig Site with a Single Polygon

Most job sites can be represented with a single polygon. To create a polygon, select either the polygon or circle tool to activate it.



Two drawing tools are available for covering the work location, the polygon tool and circle tool. A drawing tool must be selected (activated) prior to creating a new shape.



Polygon Tool- The polygon tool is the more versatile drawing tool as it can be used to draw most shapes. Once the tool is activated, click on the map to begin drawing. Move the mouse to each corner of the shape and click to change directions. To complete drawing, click on the beginning

point.



Circle Tool- Is best suited for creating a circle around smaller or circular objects. Once the tool is activated, click at the center of the desired object. Hold the left clicker on the mouse and drag

the mouse to the desired location and release. Be sure to read the measurement of the circle. If it is measuring in diameter, the total diameter must be doubled to equal the radius of the object.

The polygon should cover the dig site completely while being as precise as possible. Drawing an oversized polygon is discouraged. If an oversized polygon is necessary, a description of the precise dig site within the polygon must be written in the Additional Information-Remarks field at the bottom of the ticket.

Below are a few examples of tickets completed with a single polygon.

Example 1

The replacement of a driveway and sidewalk to the home.



Example 2

A stretch of road that is being replaced.



Example 3

The removal of a tree, roots, and stump grinding.



Creating Multiple Polygons

Multiple polygons may be created for jobs with multiple dig sites. Up to 15 polygons may be created per ticket.

To create a polygon, select either the polygon or circle tool.



Polygon Tool- The polygon tool is the more versatile drawing tool as it can be used to draw most shapes. Once the tool is activated, click on the map to begin drawing. Move the mouse to each corner of the shape and click to change directions. To complete drawing, click on the beginning

point.



Circle Tool- Is best suited for covering a dig site that is around smaller or circular objects. Once the tool is activated, click at the center of the desired object. Hold the left clicker on the mouse and drag the mouse to the desired location and release. Be sure to read the measurement of the circle.

If it is measuring in diameter, the total diameter must be doubled to equal the radius of the object.

After the first shape is drawn, click either the polygon or circle tool to activate it and draw the next shape on the map. Repeat the process for each additional shape. Each polygon should cover the associated dig site completely while being as precise as possible.

Drawing an oversized polygon is discouraged. If the polygon(s) cover areas outside/beyond of the proposed dig site, a description of the precise dig site must be written in the Additional Information-Remarks field at the bottom of the ticket.



Each polygon created is assigned a number. Up to 15 polygons may be created per ticket. When more than one polygon is created on the map, an area highlighted in blue will appear that connects the polygons. The blue highlighted area, or bounding geometry, is used to calculate the total area of the job.

**The red polygons determine which facility owners receive the request and which areas are to be located. The blue shape is not a work location polygon and is not used by facility owners/locators to determine the dig site. **

The measurement/area of each circle/polygon and the total area of the job may be viewed in the Dig Site Location section. This will include the diameter of a circle, the area of a polygon, and the total area of the blue highlighted area.

If the area highlighted in blue does not meet the size requirements for the ticket type selected and work zone, an error will appear on the screen indicating the error.

	1	14 m	1.1.1.1.1	1.0	150 million tore
Total area	covered by the	digsites	cannot be	larger than	20,021 ft ² .

Below are examples of tickets created with multiple polygons.

Example 1

The reconstruction of two intersections.





Example 2

Road Reconstruction Including Intersections



Example 3

Installing multiple mailboxes.

Search type Street	~	2			
Street* Sandhurst Dr Grand Blanc 44	Use registered address				
Search Tip: You can search again another Ir Click the Reset button to start your	Reset	the second		-	
Maximum dig site size all Urban - Area (min 0.11ft² Rural - Area (min 0.11ft²	owed per single ticket: - max 20,000.40ft ²) - max 49,999.39ft ²)	dhuist Dr	2 Sentimuestre	0	4 Sanchurst Dr
1 - Diameter: 12 ft 2 - Diameter: 13 ft 3 - Diameter: 13 ft 4 - Diameter: 12 ft Total Area: 2,165 ft ²	Next Cancel	D		andehurst Ct	C



Example 4

The front yard at two addresses.



Editing and Deleting the Polygon/Circle

To edit a polygon, click the Edit icon located just above the trash can icon on the upper right side of the map.

White edit points will appear around the polygons on the map. Click on a point to adjust the size and shape. When resizing is complete, click *Save* to save the changes. Click *Cancel* to exit the edit function without saving.







To delete polygons on the map, click on the Trash Bin icon and select the desired polygon(s) to be removed. Click Save next to the Trash Bin icon to save the changes made.

|--|

If a polygon was removed by mistake or is needed, click Cancel to restore the polygons and map to the former state.

If all polygons needed to be removed, click Clear All to remove all the polygons and clear the map.

Confirm Dig Site

Enter the location of the dig site. The information entered in the Dig Site Location section for finding the dig site does not always auto-populate into the Confirm Dig Site section. The information entered in the Confirm Dig Site section is included on the ticket. Be sure the streets, addresses, city/town are relevant to the work location.

Street- Enter the address or addresses. If work does not take place at an addressed location, enter the nearest street to the dig site.

Town/City- Enter the city, township, or village of the work location.

Nearest Cross Street- Enter the nearest cross street to the work location.

2nd Nearest Cross Street- Provide another near cross street. This field is optional but encouraged.

Lot Number/Subdivision Name- Enter lot numbers or a subdivision name, when applicable.

Click NEXT.

Additional Information

The additional information section contains the Remarks-Additional Details field. Enter information not previously included on the ticket in the Remarks field; this may include driving instructions, additional work types, excavation methods, or any information necessary to aid the facility owners/operators in responding to the ticket.

If the polygon is overdrawn (covers more than the precise dig site), a written description of the dig site must be provided in the Remarks field. Facility owners and locators benefit from additional details in this field, especially if the worksite is difficult to locate. Please consider including relevant information in this field. If the polygon accurately and precisely depicts the work location, you can enter "**See Polygon**". If written instructions are provided, they may only include areas within the drawn polygon for this ticket.

Tick Box- Read the information and click in the box to agree to the terms prior to submitting a ticket.

Click Submit.

The ticket details appear on the screen along with the members who will receive the ticket. An email confirmation of the ticket is sent to the user's email address upon submitting a ticket.



Ticket History

Ticket history may be viewed by clicking History on the left side of the Home page.

A search may be conducted by using a ticket number, town/city, date, ticket type, or user reference.

To search by date, choose a beginning and ending date range and click Submit. When searching by any other criteria, a valid date is required for the search.

Created date					
Jan 02 2023	×	Jan 15 2023	×	Export	Search

To search by Ticket Number, Ticket Type, or User Reference, choose the appropriate category from the Filter By drop down menu and enter the details in the next field. Click Search

Filter by Ticket type	Ticket type Select one
	Normal - 21 day
	Project - 21 day
	Normal - 180 day
	Project - 180 day
	Design
	Emergency
	Short Notice



Normal - 180 day 2021121200035-000 922 River St Alpena		Actions	X
	Affected Members Your MISS DIG 811 Ticket has been submitted. Shorthy you will readive an email confirming your ticket listing the utility owners who will respond to you regarding the location of their facilities. If you do not receive a confirmation email for this ticket, please contact the call center by calling -1 800-482-7171 Important. Refer to the wold is for guidelines and detuits -http://www.misidgiTiong Remember - Do not proceed with your work until ALL utility owners listed have either marked the location of their facilities, OR provided you information about the location of their assets, OR have	e	
Contract details Information acoust the worksite and type of work involved	CLOSE CORCOMFER Communications Fiber Eiber Drick Motification Set		
Ticket details	GRUZZER Gruzvalski Rber Fiber Optics - Notification Sent		
922 River St Alpena	GRUZX Gruzvalski Fiber EXFT Notification Sent		

Tickets can be sorted by ticket number, status, address, ticket type, submit date, work to begin date or user reference by choosing from the *Sort By* drop down menu.

*	Home •
	Dashboard
	New Ticket
	Message of the Day
	Service Announcements
; 0 ; /m3	History
~	Positive Response



So U	Sort by User Reference (Ascending)			
	Ticket number (Ascending)			
2	Ticket number (Descending)			
	Status (Ascending)			
ľ	Status (Descending)			
2	Address (Ascending)			
ι	Address (Descending)			
2	Ticket type (Ascending)			

Export Tickets

Ticket history information can be exported into a CVS file. A search may be conducted by using a ticket number, town/city, date, ticket type, or user reference.

 To search by date, choose a beginning and ending date range and click Search.
 When searching by any other criteria, a valid date is required for the search or date criteria may be removed by clicking the "x" next to the date fields.

Created date					
Jan 02 2023	\times	Jan 15 2023	×	Export	Search

2) To search by Ticket Number, Ticket Type, or User Reference, choose the appropriate category from the Filter By drop down menu and enter the details in the next field. When searching by any of the above criteria, a valid date is required for the search.

iter by icket number	Ticket number	Town/City	Created date Jan 31 2023	× Feb 01 2023	× Sei
Ticket number					
Ticket type					
User reference					

- 3) Click Search
- 4) Search results will be displayed on the screen.
- 5) Once the searched for tickets are displayed, click Export to download a CSV file.
- 6) Open the file to view ticket information from all displayed searched for tickets in an Excel Spreadsheet.



7) The CSV file will contain the ticket and revision number, the username of the person that placed the ticket, user reference, a previous ticket number if the ticket was created by using the copy or continue action from a previous ticket and work site location details.

AutoSave 💽 🔛		OneCall_20230201_0910AM 🛩	۶ مر	earch			Brandi Fielding 📴 🖉 🖽	- 0 >
File Home Inser	t Page Layout Formulas I	Data Review View Automa	te Add-ins Help				🖓 Comm	ents 🛛 🖄 Share 🖓
Paste Format Painter	Calibri \sim 11 \sim A ⁺ A ⁺ B I \sqcup \Box \Box Δ \sim	Ξ Ξ Ξ Image: A state of the s	t General - Center - \$ - % 9 10 40	Conditional Format as Formatting ~ Table ~	Bad Good Check Cell Explanatory	Neutral	Trant → Clear × Filter × Select × Se	Analyze Data
Clipboard 6	Font	ry Alignment	fü Number fü		Styles	Cells	Editing	Analysis
E2 * : >	√ fx C D	E F G	н	1 I	1	κ	L	м
1 Ticket No Ticket Revisio	n User Refer Username C	Company Ticket Status Previous Ticket N	o Ticket Creation Date	Work to Begin Date	Work Legal Start Date	Work Expiration Date	Work Site Address	Nearest Cross Stre
2 20230201	0 Bay Electro pattyp@missdig811.org	Original 2023020100001-	000 Wednesday, February 1, 2023 8:42:41	AM Friday, February 10, 2023 8:00:00 AM	Friday, February 10, 2023 8:00:00 AM	Friday, March 3, 2023 11:59:59 PM	20805 Kraft Blvd Roseville 48066	Little Mack ave
3 20230201	0 Bay Electropattyp@missdig811.org	Original	Wednesday, February 1, 2023 8:35:26	AM Friday, February 10, 2023 8:00:00 AM	Friday, February 10, 2023 8:00:00 AM	Friday, March 3, 2023 11:59:59 PM	20805 Kraft Blvd Roseville 48066	Little Mack ave
4 20230131	0 pattyp@missdig811.org	Original	Tuesday, January 31, 2023 10:53:33 AN	A Friday, February 3, 2023 10:53:33 AM	Friday, February 3, 2023 10:53:33 AM	Friday, February 24, 2023 11:59:59 PM	1234 VALLEY CREEK DR Inland Township 4964	3 BUCKHORN TRAIL
5 20230131	0 pattyp@missdig811.org	Original 2023013100042-	000 Tuesday, January 31, 2023 10:41:33 AN	A Thursday, February 9, 2023 7:00:00 AN	1 Thursday, February 9, 2023 7:00:00 AM	Thursday, March 2, 2023 11:59:59 PM	TELEGRPAH RD Redford Charter Twp 48239	W CHICAGO
6 20230131	0 pattyp@missdig811.org	Original	Tuesday, January 31, 2023 10:36:17 AN	A Friday, February 3, 2023 10:36:17 AM	Friday, February 3, 2023 10:36:17 AM	Wednesday, August 2, 2023 11:59:59 PM	TELEGRPAH RD Redford Charter Twp 48239	W CHICAGO
7 20230131	0 pattyp@missdig811.org	Original 2023013100040-	000 Tuesday, January 31, 2023 10:19:09 AN	A Friday, February 3, 2023 10:15:00 AM	Friday, February 3, 2023 10:15:00 AM	Friday, February 24, 2023 11:59:59 PM	Early Dr Sterling Heights 48313	MARTHA ST
8 20230131	0 pattyp@missdig811.org	Original	Tuesday, January 31, 2023 10:14:46 AN	A Friday, February 3, 2023 10:14:46 AM	Friday, February 3, 2023 10:14:46 AM	Friday, February 24, 2023 11:59:59 PM	Early Dr Sterling Heights 48313	MARTHA ST
9 20230131	0 pattyp@missdig811.org	Original	Tuesday, January 31, 2023 10:03:36 AN	A Tuesday, February 7, 2023 8:00:00 AM	Tuesday, February 7, 2023 8:00:00 AM	Tuesday, February 28, 2023 11:59:59 PM	39104 Zofia Ave Sterling Heights 48313	EARLY DR

Positive Response

Positive Response is the platform used to relay the status of a ticket. Facility owners are required to post a response for all dig tickets regarding the marking of their facilities. Excavators are required to check Positive Response prior to digging.

Facility owners/operators are required to provide a response to design tickets, but it is not mandatory the response is posted in Positive Response.

Positive Response is accessed from the Home page in OneCallAccess by clicking Positive Response.

The Positive Response main page contains a list of Open tickets, a map showing where open tickets are located within the state, a search field and a download button.



OPEN/WORKS DONE- Tickets are added to positive response upon submission. They are categorized as OPEN until the user chooses to designate them as WORKS DONE or they are cancelled. All open tickets appear on the home page.

A ticket may be categorized as WORKS DONE after the ticket has expired. This will remove it from the Home page Open list. WORKS DONE tickets may be viewed at any time by clicking WORKS DONE on the

PositiveResponse			X 0 0
	My Tickets Cear	search Refresh	Download
💄 My tickets 📰	Sentrch Created On V 12 Nov 2021 - 12 V Res.	P No	+
About PositiveResponse			- 1
Privacy	2021111500016 Waldon Rd Independence Charter Township OPEN 129 WORKS DONE 8		e
	2021111500015 5573 Juneberry Ct Waterford Twp 15 Nov 2021, 0424pm 18 Nov 2021		Re
	2021111500018 47676 Galleon Dr Plymouth Creating our Average To Nov 2021, 0441pm Tr Nov 2021 View NNESOTA	Sudbury	Aleonaula



home page of positive response. If a ticket is cancelled in the history tab of OCA, the ticket will automatically go in the WORKS DONE tab.

To view facility owner/operator postings, choose a ticket from the list or enter the ticket number in the Search field. The most recent version of the ticket will be displayed.

Facility responses can be seen on the left side of the page. The status wheel indicates how many facility owners/locators have responded to the request. When the status wheel indicates all facility owners have posted a response, excavators are required to open each response to view the comments. This is done by clicking on the box associated with each member/station code.

2021111500013-001 17562 Bodsford St Trenton		Download X
There Open Minist Device 2/5 30 Nov 2021 Comparing the open of the op	Creater on 15 Nov 2021, 04:17 pm Add internal note	
Search by Asset Owner or Station Code	Q Most recent →	
UTILITY RESOURCE GROUP, LLC SUB RISPOR	HSE CODE STATION CODE RECEIVED URGTEST 01 Dec	
DTE ENERGY (GAS) GAS	NSE CODE STATION CODE RECEIVED MCGC26 01 Dec	
AT&T TELEPHONE RESINCE Response(s): 2 999	ATTD RECEIVED	the second secon
Gruzwalski Fiber Response(s): 2 999	INSE CODE STATION CODE RECEIVED GRUZFBR 08 Dec	
USIC SUB-SETT TESTING Response(s): 2 999	USICTEST1 08 Dec	
Toter Open Verde tone 2/5 Start Size 30 Nov 2021 Central By CiridyLu RECEIVED CiridyLu NOT RECEIVED Antercon	Orend on 15 Nov 2021, 04:17 pm Add internal note	UTILITY RESOURCE GROUP, REQUEST NO. 2021111500013 01 Dec 2021, 01:36pm 2021111500013-001 assigned by Jeff Granger Code: 001 Full Description: Dig with caution following PA 174 requirements: Facility is outside of stated area/scope of excavation.
Search by Asset Owner or Station Code	Q. Most recent V	Notes: This is a short notice ticket Test from Pelican admin
UTILITY RESOURCE GROUP, LLC SUB	RESPONSE CODE STATION CODE RECEIVED 001 URGTEST 01 Dec	 That's all the responses from this asset owner.
DTE ENERGY (GAS) GAS	RESPONSE CODE STATION CODE RECEIVED 001 MCGC26 01 Dec	
AT&T TELEPHONE	999 ATTD 08 Dec	
Gruzwalski Fiber	RESPONSE CODE STATION CODE RECEIVED 999 GRUZF&R 08 Dec	
USIC SUB-SETT TESTING	RESPONSE CODE STATION CODE RECEIVED 999 USICTESTI 08 Dec	

Job Packet & Internal Notes

A job packet may be printed or downloaded by clicking Download on the upper right side of the Positive Response page. The job packet includes a PDF copy of the ticket, and the positive response postings provided by the facility owners/operators. This may be shared with crews in the field.



Internal Notes along with attachments may be added by clicking *Add Internal Note*. These notes are for the excavator's reference and are not shared with facility owners/locators. Notes can be seen on the left side of the page beneath the member responses. These notes are also viewable in the job packet.

Works Done

To designate a job as "Works Done" and remove it from the OPEN list on the home page, click Works Done. This action does not cancel the ticket, however cancelled tickets will be displayed in the Works Done category.

POSR.MISSDIG811.ORG

Ticket responses may be viewed by anyone by going to posr.missdig811.org and entering the ticket number and clicking enter on the keyboard. The positive response postings to the most recent version of the ticket are displayed.

Positive Response Codes

An explanation of each positive response code may be found on the Excavator Pros Reference Materials page on the MISS DIG 811 website or below.

Normal 21-Day, Project 21-Day, No Facilities, Additional Assistance, ar	ormal 180-Day, Project 180-Day, Short Notice, Emergency, Unmarked nd Destroyed Markings
001 – NO CONFLICT	Dig with caution following PA 174 requirements: Facility is outside of stated area/scope of excavation.
002 – MARKED	Dig with caution following PA 174 requirements: Facilities have been marked.
003 – NOT COMPLETE	Do NOT dig: Locating was not completed because more time is needed; coordination or assistance required to complete the locating of the facility.
004 – MARKED UTILITY REQUIRED ONSITE	Dig with caution following PA 174 requirements: Facility owner/operator required to be on-site when excavating within the noted scope of work for this specific facility.

Design (Positive Response by member not required)			
201 – NO FACILITIES IN DRAWN POLYGON	No facilities in mapped/drawn polygon		
202 – TASK COMPLETED	Facility owner/operator sent record drawings to design		
203 – MARKING REQUIRED	As designed in PA 174 Section 6a paragraph (3)		



Auto-Responses (System-Generated): Design
204 – DESIGNING F NEAR MDOT T R-O-W	Review the right-of-way maps <u>here</u> . If project encroaches MDOT property, contact the appropriate Fransportation Service Center (TSC) for MDOT infrastructure information. <u>Current TSC maps and</u> contacts.
Auto-Responses (Notice, Emergenc	System-Generated): Normal 21-Day, Project 21-Day, Normal 180-Day, Project 180-Day, Short y, Unmarked Facilities, Additional Assistance, and Destroyed Markings
000 – RESPONSE PENDING	Do not dig: Legal start date and time has not started. This is a system-generated response.
010 – EXEMPT FROM MARKING	Dig with caution following PA 174 requirements. As defined in PA 174 Section 460.727 Sec. 7 (9). This is a system-generated response.
011 – NO MEMBERS IN WORK POLYGON	Dig with caution following PA 174 requirements. There are no member facility owner/operators to notify in the drawn polygon. This is a system-generated response.
012 – POSSIBLE ABANDONED FACILITY	Dig with caution following PA 174 requirements. There may be an abandoned facility in the proposed excavation area. This is a system-generated response.
013 – CANCELED TICKET	Do not dig. The dig notice was canceled. This is a system-generated response.
020 – WORKING NEAR MDOT R-O- W	Dig with caution following PA 174 requirements. Review the right-of-way maps <u>here</u> . If project encroaches MDOT property, contact the appropriate Transportation Service Center (TSC) for MDOT infrastructure information. <u>Current TSC maps and contacts</u> .
999 – HAS NOT RESPONDED	Do not dig: Facility owner/operator did not provide a response by the response due date and time. Retransmit ticket for unmarked facilities. This is a system-generated response.



Private Locator Responses	
301 – CONTACTED REQUESTOR	No locate performed
302 – CONTACTED REQUESTOR	Locate performed

Excavator Positive Response Check
Excavators required to check off a box on Positive Response page before placing a RXMT to confirm they checked before beginning per PA 174

Ticket Actions

After a ticket is submitted, circumstances may require a ticket to be canceled, updated, or retransmitted. This guide provides instructions to perform each action. The actions contained in this manual are currently available in the OneCallAccess system (OCA). Additional actions may be added in future OneCallAccess updates.

Retransmitting a Ticket

A ticket may be retransmitted because of marking issues only at this time. Retransmitting a ticket does not change the ticket number. Retransmitting a ticket results in an update to the version or revision number. The revision number is found after the dash at the end of the ticket number. An example of an original ticket number is 2021112000003-000. No revision exists on an original ticket, so the revision number is -000. The first revision would result in a change to the version or revision number 2021111200003-001.

A revision number must be entered if the retransmit is for a NOW ticket, meaning that the crew is on site or en route for Unmarked Facilities or Additional Assistance or if specific staking information is entered. A revision number will be entered as -001, -002 and so on depending on what revision number this is to the ticket. To determine which revision number should be entered, look at the last three digits of the ticket number after the dash and the revision number entered will be the following sequence. For example, if the ticket number ends in -000 then the revision number entered will be -001.

Tickets with erroneous information may not be retransmitted to correct the issue. To correct an error, the ticket is canceled and replaced. A ticket may be canceled up to the work legal start date on the ticket.

Updating the field contact information or adding details to aid the locator in finding or accessing the site is acceptable when retransmitting a ticket. This information may include driving instructions, an access point to the dig site, or a gate code. Updates to the type of work, activity, or work location are not acceptable. These changes would require a replacement ticket.



Positive Response must be reviewed prior to transmitting a ticket for Unmarked Facilities, Destroyed Markings, or Additional Assistance. Specify which facility owners/operators are required to respond to the request based on positive response postings and field conditions. It is not acceptable to request a response from all facility owners/operators as a replacement for checking positive response.

A ticket may be retransmitted after the work legal start date of the most recent revision of the ticket. The work legal start date can be found on the ticket.

Destroyed Markings

When markings are removed, destroyed, or are no longer visible or reliable, a ticket may be retransmitted for destroyed markings. Facility owners are required to respond within 24 hours on business days.

WHO: All Users of the system

WHEN: Between the Work Legal Start Date up to 24 business hours before the ticket expiration date/time.

PROCEDURES

- 1) If the ticket is one of the last five tickets placed, click on the ticket under Recent History on the Home page of OCA to display the ticket.
- 2) Click History to search for the ticket if it is not found in recent history.
- 3) Enter the ticket number with the most recent revision number, and the date (or date range) the most recent revision of the ticket was placed.

History SITE/CONSUME SOL 400 COMPANY- Representing CN0YLU, HOMOMMER							
Sort by Select one	~	Fitter by Ticket number	Ticket number 2021111800011-000	Town/City	Cruend date Oct 01 2021 X Nov 28 2021 X Search		
2021111800011-000 1790 Original Normal - 21 day	22111180011-000 1730 Harvey Dr Williamston Williamston Williamston Williamston Williamston User Reference Driginal Normal - 21 day 11/16/2021 - 104548 am 11/22/0221 -						
✓ That's all the results with the current settings.							

- 4) Click search.
- 5) Click on the ticket to display the ticket details.
- 6) Click Actions on the upper right side of the page.

- Actions X

 C Correction
 C Update
 C Correction
 C Update
 C Copy
 C Relocate
 C Promotion
 C Unmarked Facilities
 C Additional Assistance
 C Destroyed Markings
- 7) Choose Destroyed Markings a box will appear with a list of all members notified on the request. The list will include the Station Code on the ticket, their latest Response Code, and the date/time of the latest Response.
- 8) THIS IS NOT A REPLACEMENT FOR CHECKING POSTIVE RESPONSE. YOU ARE STILL REQUIRED TO CHECK POSTIVE RESPONSE AND VIEW EACH RESPONSE FROM EACH MEMBER NOTFIED ON THE REQUEST.
- 9) Check the box next to the facility that is needed to respond to the retransmit, you are required to check Positive Response to determine which members are needed. If all facilities are needed, check the box at the top next to Select All Station. You may select multiple members at a time if needed.



Please select one or more stations to receive the unmarked facilities revision $ imes$						
Select all Station						
CLOVERLAND ELECTRIC COMPANY ELECTRIC	STATION CODE CLOVER	RESPONSE CODE	RECEIVED			
GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY POTABLE WATER	STATION CODE GLWAWTR	RESPONSE CODE 999	RECEIVED 11/01/2023 RECEIVED			
Gruzwalski Fiber	STATION CODE GRUZFBR	RESPONSE CODE 999	RECEIVED 11/02/2023			
PelicanCorpTest1	STATION CODE PCT1	RESPONSE CODE 999	RECEIVED 11/02/2023			
PelicanCorpTestMS	STATION CODE TESTMS	RESPONSE CODE 999	RECEIVED 11/02/2023			
STEPPE CONATION LANDFIL LLC	STATION CODE	RESPONSE CODE	RECEIVED			
		Continue	Cancel			

- 10) Once the member or members have been selected, click Continue to open the ticket.
- 11) Enter a Work Completion Date. This should not be dated after the expiration date of the ticket.
- 12) Review the field contact. Adjust as necessary.
- 13) In the Remarks-Additional Details Field:
- If the chosen Work to Begin Date is NOW then the request will be submitted as a NOW retransmit, in the Remarks field enter the revision number and the crew status: CREW ON SITE or CREW EN ROUTE.
- If the chosen Work to Begin Date has been changed, the revision number and crew status are not needed.

You may include pertinent information regarding the area needed if the entire area within the polygon or written description is not needed. DO NOT REMOVE ANY INFORMATION FROM PREVIOUS VERSIONS OF THE TICKET. ADD NEW INFORMATION TO THE TOP OF THE REMARKS FIELD. Please use the MISS DIG 811 approved abbreviations list located on the Excavator Pros Reference Material page on the MISS DIG 811 website or at the bottom of this guide. There is a limit of 400 characters.

• If the chosen Work to Begin Date is NOW, provide the revision number and crew status: CREW ON SITE or CREW EN ROUTE.



• If the Work to Begin Date has been changed to a later date and time, the revision number and crew status is NOT required.



Remarks - Additional Details*
SEE POLYGON

• If a portion of the job needs to be remarked, provide the revision number, and specify the location. EX: Markings were removed at a single address that is part of a ticket with five addresses. Specify which address requires remarking.



Remarks - Additional Details^{*}

001- SEE POLYGON ADDR 101 SEE POLYGON ADDRS 101, 103, 105 & 107

• Additional retransmits should be added at the beginning of the remarks field.



14) Click Submit- the summary page will display. The ticket status is Destroyed Markings. A confirmation email is sent.



Unmarked Facilities

WHO: Notification System Representatives & External Plus Users

WHEN: Between the Work Legal Start Date up to 3 business hours before the ticket expiration date/time. (As long as the digging started within 14 calendar days from the work start date)

- 1) If the ticket is one of the last five tickets placed, click on the ticket under Recent History on the Home page of OCA to display the ticket.
- 2) Click History to search for the ticket if it is not found in recent history.
- 3) Enter the ticket number with the most recent revision number, and the date (or date range) the most recent revision of the ticket was placed.
- 4) Click search.

History SERVICIOFERATOR SEDE (NO COMPANY) Representing CNDYLU, CNDYLU, HOMEOWNER									
Sort by Select one	~	Filter by Ticket number		Ticket number 2021111800011-000	Town/City		Created date Oct 01 2021	Nov 28 2021	X Search
2021111800011-000 1790 Original Normal - 21 day	2021111800011-000 1790 Harvey Dr Williamston Williamston Submit Date Ticket Start Date User Refer Driginal Normal - 21 day 11/18/2021 - 104548 am 11/23/2021 -						User Reference -		
✓ That's all the results with the current settings.									

- 5) Click on the ticket to display the ticket details.
- 6) Click Actions on the upper right side of the page.
- 7) Choose Unmarked Facilities a box will appear with a list of all members notified on the request. The list will include the Station Code on the ticket, their latest Response Code, and the date/time of the latest Response.
- 8) THIS IS NOT A REPLACEMENT FOR CHECKING POSTIVE RESPONSE. YOU ARE STILL REQUIRED TO CHECK POSTIVE RESPONSE AND VIEW EACH RESPONSE FROM EACH MEMBER NOTFIED ON THE REQUEST.





9) Check the box next to the facility that is needed to respond to the retransmit, you are required to check Positive Response to determine which members are still needed. If all facilities are needed, per Positive Response, check the box at the top next to Select All Station. You may select multiple members if needed.

Please select one or more stations to receive the unmarked facilities revision						
Select all Station						
CLOVERLAND ELECTRIC COMPANY ELECTRIC	STATION CODE CLOVER	RESPONSE CODE	RECEIVED -			
GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY POTABLE WATER	STATION CODE GLWAWTR	RESPONSE CODE 999	RECEIVED 11/01/2023 RECEIVED			
Gruzwalski Fiber	STATION CODE GRUZFBR	RESPONSE CODE 999	RECEIVED 11/02/2023			
PelicanCorpTest1	STATION CODE PCT1	RESPONSE CODE 999	RECEIVED 11/02/2023			
PelicanCorpTestMS	STATION CODE TESTMS	RESPONSE CODE 999	RECEIVED 11/02/2023			
STEPPE CONATION LANDFIL LLC	STATION CODE	RESPONSE CODE	RECEIVED			
		Continue	Cancel			

10) Once the members

for the retransmit of have been selected, click Continue to display the ticket.

needed

- 11) Enter a Work to Begin Date. This is the date and time the crew will be back on the job site.
- 12) Enter a Work Completion Date.
- 13) Review the field contact. Adjust as necessary.
- 14) In the Remarks-Additional Details Field:
 - If the chosen Work to Begin Date is NOW then the request will be submitted as a NOW retransmit, in the Remarks field enter the revision number and the crew status: CREW ON SITE or CREW EN ROUTE.
 - If the chosen Work to Begin Date has been changed, the revision number and crew status • are not needed.

You may include pertinent information regarding the area needed if the entire area within the polygon or written description is not needed. DO NOT REMOVE ANY INFORMATION FROM PREVIOUS VERSIONS OF THE TICKET. ADD NEW INFORMATION TO THE TOP OF THE REMARKS FIELD. Please use the MISS DIG 811 approved abbreviations list located on the Excavator Pros Reference Material page on the MISS DIG 811 website or at the bottom of this guide. There is a limit of 400 characters.

• If the chosen Work to Begin date is NOW, provide the revision number and crew status: CREW ON SITE or

CREW EN ROUTE.

```
Remarks - Additional Details*
001 CREW ON SITE
SEE POLYGON
```



• If the Work to Begin Date has been changed to a later date and time, the revision number and crew status are NOT required.



• If a portion of the job needs to be remarked, specify the location. EX: Markings were removed at a single address that is part of a ticket with five addresses. Specify which address requires remarking.

Remarks - Additional Details* 001- CREW ON SITE SEE POLYGON ADDR 101 SEE POLYGON ADDRS 101, 103, 105 & 107

Remarks - Additional Details* 001- SEE POLYGON ADDR 101 SEE POLYGON ADDRS 101, 103, 105 & 107

• Additional retransmits should be added at the beginning of the remarks field.



15) The ticket details will be displayed. The ticket status is Unmarked Facilities. A confirmation email is sent.



Additional Assistance

The site was marked, and the contractor has hand dug as required by PA 174, but no line was found within the approximate location of the marking. Facility owners have three working hours to respond.

WHO: Notification System Representatives & External Plus Users

WHEN: Between the Work Legal Start Date up to 3 business hours before the ticket expiration date/time. (As long as the digging started within 14 calendar days from the work start date)

Procedures

- 1) If the ticket is one of the last five tickets placed, click on the ticket under Recent History on the Home page of OCA to display the ticket.
- 2) Click History to search for the ticket if it is not found in recent history.
- 3) Enter the ticket number and the most recent revision number, and the date (or date range) the most recent revision of the ticket was placed.
- 4) Click search.

History SERVICEOPERATOR SBDE +NO COMPANY> Representing CINDYLU, CNDY LU, HOMEOWNER									
Sort by Select one	~	Filter by Ticket number		Ticket number 2021111800011-000	Town/City		Created date Oct 01 2021	Nov 28 2021	X Search
2021111800011-000 1790 H Original Normal - 21 day	2021111800011-000 1790 Harvey Dr Williamston Williamston Williamston Williamston User Refer Original Normal - 21 day 11/18/2021 - 1045548 am 11/23/2021 -						User Reference -		
✓ That's all the results with the current settings.									

- 5) Click on the ticket to display the ticket details.
- 6) Click Actions on the upper right side of the page.
- 7) Choose Additional Assistance a box will appear with a list of all members notified on the request. The list will include the Station Code on the ticket, their latest Response Code, and the date/time of the latest Response.



8) THIS IS NOT A REPLACEMENT FOR CHECKING POSTIVE RESPONSE. YOU ARE STILL REQUIRED TO CHECK POSTIVE RESPONSE AND VIEW EACH RESPONSE FROM EACH MEMBER NOTFIED ON THE REQUEST.



9) Check the box next to the facility that is needed to respond to the retransmit. You may select multiple members if needed.

Please select one or more stations to receive the unmarked facilities revision $ imes$							
Select all Station							
CLOVERLAND ELECTRIC COMPANY ELECTRIC	STATION CODE CLOVER	RESPONSE CODE	RECEIVED -				
GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY POTABLE WATER	STATION CODE GLWAWTR	RESPONSE CODE 999	RECEIVED 11/01/2023 RECEIVED				
Gruzwalski Fiber	STATION CODE GRUZFBR	RESPONSE CODE 999	RECEIVED 11/02/2023				
PelicanCorpTest1	STATION CODE PCT1	RESPONSE CODE 999	RECEIVED 11/02/2023				
PelicanCorpTestMS	STATION CODE TESTMS	RESPONSE CODE 999	RECEIVED 11/02/2023				
STEPPE CONATION LANDFIL LLC	STATION CODE	RESPONSE CODE	RECEIVED				
		Continue	Cancel				

- 10) Once the member or members needed for the retransmit have been selected, click Continue to display the ticket.
- 11) Enter a Work to Begin Date. This is the date and time the crew will be back on the job site.
- 12) Enter a Work Completion Date.
- 13) Review the field contact. Adjust as necessary.
- 14) In the Remarks-Additional Details Field:
 - If the chosen Work to Begin Date is NOW then the request will be submitted as a NOW retransmit, in the Remarks field enter the revision number and the crew status: CREW ON SITE or CREW EN ROUTE.
 - If the chosen Work to Begin Date has been changed, the revision number and crew status are not needed.

You may include pertinent information regarding the area needed if the entire area within the polygon or written description is not needed. DO NOT REMOVE ANY INFORMATION FROM PREVIOUS VERSIONS OF THE TICKET. ADD NEW INFORMATION TO THE TOP OF THE REMARKS FIELD. Please use the MISS DIG 811 approved abbreviations list located on the Excavator Pros Reference Material page on the MISS DIG 811 website or at the bottom of this guide. There is a limit of 400 characters.



• If the chosen Work to Begin Date is NOW, provide the revision number and crew status: CREW ON SITE or CREW EN ROUTE.



• If the Work to Begin Date has been changed to a later date and time, the revision number and crew status is not required.



• If assistance is needed at a specific location within the scope of the project, specify the location. EX: Hand digging takes place at a single address that is part of a ticket with five addresses. Specify the address where assistance is needed.

Remarks - Additional Details* 001- CREW ON SITE SEE POLYGON ADDR 101 SEE POLYGON ADDRS 101, 103, 105 & 107 Remarks - Additional Details* 001- SEE POLYGON ADDR 101 SEE POLYGON ADDRS 101, 103, 105 & 107

• Additional retransmits should be added to the top of the Remarks Field.



15) The ticket details will be displayed. The ticket status is Additional Assistance. A confirmation email is sent.



Member Response

Only the Station Codes selected on the Station Codes List will be notified of the request, Station Codes not selected will not be notified of this request. Once a retransmit has been submitted on a ticket, the ticket details will appear showing all information included on the ticket and the members that are notified of the request.

In the ticket details under Affected Members, the Station Codes selected from the Station Codes list will show a status of "Manual Retransmit". If a member shows the status of "Manual Retransmit", this means that they were notified and are required to respond to this request. The Station Codes not selected in the Station Codes list will have a status of "Response Not Requested" and these members are not notified and not required to respond to this request.

mal - 21 day 2023110800092-002 EARLY DR Sterling Heights MI 48313



Ticket details Information about the worksite and type of work involved

Ticket details

Work site address EARLY DR Sterling Heights MI 48313

_{Status} Unmarked Facilities

Ticket created on 11/17/2023 - 12:32:51 pm

Last updated/cancelled date 11/17/2023 - 12:32:51 pm

Ticket type

Normal - 21 day

Your MISS DIG 811 Ticket has been submitted. Shortly you will receive an email confirming your tick If you <u>do not</u> receive a confirmation email for this ticl Important: Refer to the web site for guidelines and d Remember - Do not proceed with your work until A OR have provided you with a clearance to dig.

CLOSE

Affected Members 6

ARNFBR 200ARN Arnold Advantage Fiber Optics Manual Retransmit

CLOVER CLOVERLAND ELECTRIC COMPANY ELECTRIC Electric Manual Retransmit

CORCOMFBR Cormier Communications Fiber Optics Fiber Optics Manual Retransmit

GRUZFBR Gruzwalski Fiber Cable TV Response Not Requested

PCT1 PelicanCorpTest1
- Response Not Requested

TESTMS PelicanCorpTestMS - Response Not Requested



Manual Retransmit If an end user has selected a specific Station Code for delivery of a Ticket Action.

This means the Station Code will be triggered and its associated subscriptions will maually deliver this Ticket Action / Revision.

Respute of the second s

Response Not Requested If an end user does NOT select a Station Code for delivery of a Ticket Action.

Thsi means that particular Station Code will NOT receive a transmission for this Ticket Action / Revision



On the Caller Confirmation Sheet, under Utility Owner Details, the Station Codes selected from the Station Codes list, will show a status of "Notification Sent". If a member shows the status of "Notification Sent", this means that they were notified and are required to respond to this request. The Station Codes not selected in the Station Codes list will have a status of "Response Not Requested" and these members are not notified and not required to respond to this request.

A new "Status" has been introduced for those Station Codes NOT selected

The public utility owners listed below with a Status of "Notification Sent" have been requested to respond to your request. They may contact you directly for clarification of your request details.						
Station Code	Authority Name	Phone	Status			
CORCOMPH	Cormier Communications	1231231234	Notification Sent			
TESTGLWA	GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY TEST CODE	3134028288	Not Notified			
GRUZFBR	Gruzwalski Fiber	2483706413	Response Not Requested			
PCT1	PelicanCorpTest1	1234567890	Notification Sent			
TESTMS	PelicanCorpTestMS	4115151515	Notification Sent			
ND OF UTILITIES LIST		·				

<u>Response Not Requested</u> – the user has not selected this particular Station Code as part of the new Ticket Action/revision

Members that are selected in the Station Code list will be required to respond to this request in Positive Response, they will receive the new transmission of the ticket and the member will be required to respond following the normal business hours-day rule. A member not selected will not receive the new transmission and therefore is not required to respond. In Positive Response, a new revision will be generated by the previous response will be copied to the new revision.

	Stations TESTMS - PelicanCorpTestMS		Response code Search by Q All V	Search by full ticket no. num v 2023101900026
<u>Manually Selected</u> They will receive a new transmission and Positive Response will follow normal business	Due by	Response code	Ticket type	Ticket no.
rules as today	Oct 26, 2023, 10:13:12 AM	000-RESPONSE PENDING	Normal - 21 day	2023101900026-001
	^{Stations} GRUZFBR - Gruzwalski Fiber		Response code Search by Q All V Individual ticket nu	Search by full ticket no. m v 2023101900026
	Due by	Response code	Ticket type	Ticket no.
	Oct 26, 2023, 10:13:12 AM	003-NOT COMPLETE	Normal - 21 day	2023101900026-001
NOT Selected The Station Code will NOT receive a new transmission. Within Positive Response, a new Revision is generated but the previous Response Code will conv across to the new Povision	ATTO AT&T TELEPHONE		Response code Search by Q. Unassigned V Individual ticke	Search by full ticket no. t num 🗸 2023101900026
will copy across to the new newsion	Due by	Response code	Ticket type	Ticket no.
	Oct 26, 2023, 10:13:12 AM	999-HAS NOT RESPONDED	Normal - 21 day	2023101900026-001



Continue

When a job is too large to fit into a single ticket, the continue ticket feature makes it easy to create multiple tickets. The work polygon from the chosen ticket is visible on the map so the user can easily create a new polygon that picks up where the other ticket left off. The original ticket number is referenced on the continued ticket once submitted.

Who: All users of the system

When: Anytime

- 1) Continue ticket may be chosen immediately after a ticket is placed. When the ticket summary page appears upon submitting a ticket, click Actions from the upper right side of the page.
- 2) Click Continue Ticket
 - a. If the continue ticket feature is not chosen upon submitting a ticket, the reference ticket can be found in Recent History or History. If the ticket is one of the last five tickets placed, click on the ticket under Recent History on the Home page of OCA to display the ticket.
 - b. Click History to search for the ticket if it is not found in recent history.
 - c. Enter the ticket number, including the revision number -000, and the date (or date range) the ticket was placed.
 - d. Click search.
 - e. Click on the ticket to display the ticket details.
 - f. Click Actions on the upper right side of the page.
 - g. Click Continue Ticket

Normal - 180 day 2021121200035-000 922 River St Alpena		Actions X
the second	Affectiel Members	Continue ticket Cancel
100 B34	Your MISS DIG 111 Ticket has been submitted. Shortly you will reak an email confirming your ticket listing the utility evenes who will respond to you reparding the location of their facilities.	C Copy
A Charles	If you <u>do not</u> receive a confirmation email for this ticket, plasse contact the call center by calling = 1 800-482-7171 Immediately Before to the such cite for multiplicary and details. Interview manufactult inter-	C Fromation
and the second	imprivation rate to the web set of parameters and setting - regarging interparation (reg) Remember - Do net proceed with your work until ALL utility owners listed have either marked the location of their facilities, OR provided you information about the location of their parameters and the setting of the	C [*] Unmarked Facilities
A starter	CORE	C Additional Assistance C Destroyed Markings
Ticket details information about the worksits and type of work insisted	CORCOMISE Corner Communicators Floer	S History
Ticket details		B Download confirmation sheet
Word and address	URIAL/ENK STREAMENT FORM	B Resend confirmation sheet

- 3) Review ticket details and adjust as needed.
- 4) Click Next to go to section 2 Dig Site Location
 - a. The polygon from the reference ticket is visible. Create a polygon that covers the next portion of the project.
 - b. Click Next
- 5) Enter the location information in the Confirm Dig Site. This information is included on the ticket.
- 6) Click Next
- 7) Enter Remarks, if needed.
- 8) Check the agreement boxes.
- 9) Click *Submit*. The previous ticket is referenced on the new ticket.





MISS DIG 811 APPROVED ABBREVIATIONS LIST

Please use the MISS DIG 811 approved abbreviations list in the Remarks – Additional Details field to limit the characters used when additional information needs to be conveyed to the locators. This field is limited to 400 characters. The remarks field is used for the original ticket and any subsequent retransmits. Please do not exceed 300 characters on the original ticket, in case retransmits are needed after the Work Legal Dig Start Date.

**Previous information cannot be removed from the Remarks – Additional Details field when retransmitted information is added to this field. Please refer to the Ticket Actions Procedures on the Excavator Pros Reference Material page on the MISS DIG 811 website if you are unsure on how to place a retransmit.

**When placing requests on OneCallAccess, only use the abbreviations on this MISS DIG 811 approved list and please don't try to create new abbreviations as this may confuse the locators.

ADDN	addition	СОММ	commission
ADDL	additional	COMMUN	communication
ADDR	address	CONDO	condominium
ΑΚΑ	also known as	CONST	construction
ALT	alternate	CONTR	contractor
ANCH	anchor	COR	corner
&	and	CORP	corporation
APT	apartment	CORR	correction
APPT	appointment	СКК	creek
ΑΡΧ	approximately	СТ	court
ASAP	as soon as possible	CUST	customer
AVAIL	available	СҮ	city
AVE	avenue	DEMOL	demolish
BEG	begin/beginning	DIR	direction
BET	between	DR	drive
ВК	back	DRWY	driveway
BLDG	building	Ε	east
BLDR	builder	E/B	east bound
BLK	block	ELEC	electric
BLVD	boulevard	ELEM	elementary
BRKN	broken	EMERG	emergency
BSMT	basement	ENCL	enclosure
BTH	both	ENGR	engineering
C/L	center line	ENTR	entrance



CATV	cable television	ESMT	easement
CHNG	change	ESP	especially
CIR	circle	ESTS	estates
CLR	clear	EXC	excavation
CNTY	county	EXIST	existing
СО	company	EXT	extension
FACIL	facilities	РК	park
FRM	from	РКС	parking
FRT	front	ΡΚ₩Υ	parkway
FT	foot or feet	PLBG	plumbing
FTG	footing	PLC	place
GRD	ground	PLS	please
HI PRESS	high pressure	PROP	property
HLS	hills	РТ	point
HSE	house	PVMT	pavement
HTG	heating	PWR	power
HTS	heights	PVT	private
HWY	highway	QUAD	quadrant
HYDT	hydrant	QUEST	question
IFO	in front of	RELOC	relocate
INC	incorporated	REMV	remove
INFO	information	REPLC	replace
INSTL	install	REPR	repair
INTER	intersection	REQ	request
INVIS	invisible	RESID	residence
IRRIG	irrigation	RD	road
LNDSCP	landscape	REST	restaurant
LK	lake or leak	RESTK	restake
LN	lane	<i>R-O-W</i>	right of way
LOC	location	RR	railroad
LTD	limited	S	south
MAINT	maintenance	S/B	south bound
МКТ	market	SANI	sanitary
МІ	mile	SEC	section
МОВ НМ РК	mobile home park	SD	side
MT	mount/mountain	SDWLK	sidewalk
MTR	meter	SERV	service



N	north	SHRS	shores
N/B	north bound	SPRINK	sprinkler
NR	near	ST	street
OPP	opposite	STA	station
PED	pedestal	STK	stake
P/L	property line	STKG	staking
SUB	subdivision	UNKN	unknown
SWR	sewer	UTILS	utilities
SYS	system	VAC	vacant
TEL	telephone	VLG	village
ТЕМР	temporary	W	west
TERM	terminal	W/	with
ТКТ	ticket	W/B	west bound
TRANSF	transformer	WDS	woods
TRANSM	transmission	WMB	water main break
TRANSP	transplant	WO	work order
THRU	through	WRK	work
TRL	trail	WRKG	working
TRLR	trailer	WTR	water
TRAX	tracks (rr trax)	X-ST	cross street
ТѠҎ	township	XWAY	expressway
UG	underground	YD	yard